We need volunteers with model railroad experience

to build a new Lionel layout for the Museum’s -
Christmas display. Join us! Be part of the design and#
creation of a twenty-first century railroad.

Don Duvall has always been inspired by the man
experiences that visitors shared with him when h
served as docent at the Museum’s Christmas display.
But sadly he reminds us that our Lionel layout is just “played out.” Rather th
merely replace track, wouldn't it be fun to have a group of enthusiastsidesig
and build a whole nevayout? The Museum would be so proud to showcase the
2009 Oxford Lionel Train Display. Anyone who is still a child at heart and has
enthusiasm and talents to share, please contact Gordon Graves, uaay,M

or the Oxford Museum.

Headlines will proclaim the season’s joy ..... Rail Returns to Oxford!

Last year Nancy and Peter Colket won a marine instrument in a rafikesdT

are two lucky people: a few years ago Nancy won a new Volvo in the
Chesapeake Bay Maritime Museum raffle.) To keep their good karma going,
they donated the instrument to the Museum which we in turn were able to sell,
donating the proceeds to the Annual Giving fund. Thanks, Colkets!
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Isaac and Chuck Anthony recently sought help from the Museum for their
genealogical research. Drawing on the Anthony family Bible and partial
genealogical charts, already in our collection, Leo Nollmeyer wasable t
identify a new link in the chain for the Anthony’s to pursue. Grateful for the
help, their case reinforces the genealogic value of our collection
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May: Monday, Fridays, Saturdays from 10-4, Sundays 1-4

June through September: Mondays, Wednesdays, Fridays, and
Saturdays 10-4, Sundays 1-4
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Pat Jessup  President
Kathleen Kurtz  Vice President
Dorette Murray  Secretary

Bob Valliant  Treasurer
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The Oxford Museum

100 S. Morris Street, PO Box 131, Oxford, MD 21654
410-226-0191
www.oxfordmuseum.org, oxford_museum@verizon.net

Among the many works by Oxford artist John Moll that will be on display in the
exhibitJohn Moll: A Special Sense of Pladg@pril 25 — May 31) will be a
surprise gift. When asked for recollections of his good friend and famous
neighbor, John Todd
offered the Oxford
Museum not only
memories but an oil
painting by Moll. Dated
1968, the vibrant
painting shows Todd’s
sailboatHot Toddyin a
race off Island Creek. |
that year, Todd won thef!
annual high point troph
for class C boats. John |}
Moll painted it from S
memory, placing Todd 3
the wheel and his step-
son, Robert Downes,
tending the sheets.

Growing up on Ashby Farm near Waverly, John Todd had sailing in his blood.
For years he raced Star class boats off Oxford, often counting Fletahies &taa
crewman after 1937, and crewing himself for champion sailor Doug Hanks in the
RumpusTodd remembers that John Moll also loved sailing, frequently crewing
on Stars belonging to good friends the Seatons and the Hallicks. John’srlove fo
boats did not end there: he filled requests to paint “tiger” designs on bows, and
fancy names on sterns.

John Todd with donated Moll painting of Hot Toddy

John Todd and his wife Charlotte moved into Thread Haven Cottage in 1946, jus

about the time John and Betty Moll moved from Middletown, Delaware into a
house down the street from the Todds. They soon became fast friends. Todd
remembers Betty as vivacious, while John was warm but shy, preferring smal
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groups for company. John sketched Thread Haven Cottage and painted its name
on a sign for the Todds about 1950, one of many houses he sketched throughout
Talbot County during his forty-year career in Oxford as a free-larisé drodd
remembers Moll as highly skilled, disciplined and prolific as antabliig also a

family man who thoroughly enjoyed the quiet life along the Bay and its creeks
John often looked at the water and boats from his house and studio, only a stone
throw across Todd'’s yard to the Tred Avon.

Now an active 92 years old, John Todd lives in Easton. He donated the oil
painting in memory of his step son, Robert Downes Ill. The exhibit opens Oxford
Day at the rectory at Holy Trinity and runs weekends through May 31, 2009.
Admission $10.00. Exhibit partially funded by the Talbot County Arts Council
with funds provided by the Talbot County Council and the towns of Easton and
St. Michaels.



We’'re pleased to report that the Oxford Museum has been accepted for an
“institutional assessment” by the American Museum Association Bblaed
applied for this comprehensive self-study and peer review as a critical
component in our efforts to attain excellence in operations and planning and
greater credibility with potential funders and donors. It's going to be a busy
summer!
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The Museum gratefully acknowledges the Chamberlaine familyentagift of
17" and 18 century documents, including the original 1681 deed to “Arcadia,”
later called Peachblossom. This donation dovetails with the Chambédogjne
previously gifted by the family. Watch for a feature on the Chamberlaine
collection in the nexiistorian.
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Rumor has it that on the coldest night in March, Dorette and Larry Murray had
tents in their back yard. They did! Where else could the Venturing Ceep3l|

With promises of home cooking, Board member, Dorette, cajoled this energetic
group of former scouts from all over the Delmarva area to build a wigwam for
the Museum — for her educational program on early inhabitants. Harvesting
saplings from David Thompson's property, they built the wigwam using
traditional methods.

On Oxford Day, the Venturing Crew anticipates returning in costume to explain
the engineering feat of wigwam construction. Then in the summer according to
plan, local Oxford kids will serve as docents, telling their own stabesit the
lifestyle of Oxford'’s first citizens. Now that’'s community involvement

Finished cutting
+1| saplings. Evan

4| Wittman, Scott
Worsham (adult
advisor), Jessop
Baurek, Heather
¢ Young, Jessica
Wittman, Kevin Bailey
+| (youth in charge of
project), Museum
Board member,
% Dorette Murray

Completed wigwam.
Dorette Murray,
kneeling, with

| Venturing Crew:

| Jessica Wittman,
Jessop Bourek, Kristin
Crewe, Michelle
Ritzler, Jordan Walls,
Phillip Riemann,
Heather Young, Kevin
Bailey, Nicole Clarke,
Evan Wittman, Will
Clarke, Scott
Worsham (top)
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This year’s opening theme centers on Oxford’s experiences in thremwarti
eras: the Revolutionary War, the Civil War, and World War Il

A selection of letters written
by Col. Tench Tilghman,
aide-de-camp to Gen. Georpe
Washington, reflects
sentiments and events during
the Revolutionary
War. Rotating throughout thie
season, these letters were
transcribed by the Reverends
Jay and Carolyn Bunting
from the collections of the
National Archives and
Library of Congress.

In the front window, the Civil
War exhibit,"Oxford: Class
of 1850," tells the story of 31
cadets who graduated from
Oxford's Maryland Military
Academy. Based on
extensive research by Rev.
Jay Bunting for his recently
published book of the same
title, the exhibit details the
lives of these young men and
how their paths intersected
during the War and
beyond. On Oxford Day, he will don period costume for a book signing at
the Museum.

The other window’s display speeds forward to World WéiOkford at

War: A Small Town’s Unsung Hero.” Curated by Board member Gordon
Graves, it features the story of Fletcher Hanks, Jr. and his wartime
experiences "flying the hump" with CNAC (China National Aviation
Corporation). It pays tribute to Fletcher and all unsung heroes from what
others have called “the greatest generation.”
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The Reverends Carolyn and Jay Bunting
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The 2009 Annual Meeting will be held on Thursday, May 14, at 5:30 p.m. at the
Parish House of the Church of the Holy Trinity. All members are invited to
attend. A brief business meeting will include election of officersdimattors

and an update of activities and future plans. The evening will culenwigt the
announcement of the winner of the Douglas Hanks Jr. Oxford Preservation
Award. Beverages and delicious appetizers will be served.

Plan now to attend, and call the Museum office to let us know, 410-226-0191.
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We close our series on Anderton by introducing you to a lady who may or may
not have lived there in the late 17th century when tobacco plantatioreithr
and Oxford was “becoming.”

Dickson J. Preston, in his bodBxford: The First Three Centurigdescribed
Elizabeth Roe-Combs-Lowe as a Very Important Person, a label rarglgeatsi

to women in the 1600s. What earned her that distinction was the fact that she
owned the land that would become Oxford. It seems in 1672, her father, Edwar
Roe, purchased 420 acres on the Tred Avon from the Stephens family which in
turn had obtained it in 1668 from Edward Lloyd who was developing extensive
holdings by the Wye River.

Soon after his Tred Avon purchase, Edward Roe died and his daughter inherite
the land. When she married William Combs, an Oxford merchant (possibly
even a pirate), who is credited with building Combesbury on Island Creek, the
land remained in her name. However it's interesting that in August 1684 when
Oxford was surveyed and lots sold, Combs, not his wife, was regarded as the
owner of the town property. An oversight to be sure, Preston muses, attributing
it to Elizabeth Roe Combs’ status as “a mere woman.”
Nonetheless, thel ISR SEE e
land stayed with
her after Comb
death and even |
into her second
marriage to
Nicholas Lowe, g8
gentleman who [
was prominent i
provincial affairs.
His aunt, Jane
Lowe was Lady
Baltimore, the
second wife of
Lord Baltimore.
In 1694, when
Oxford and Ann
Arundel on the
western shore, were named the two sole ports of entry for the entiyaihr
province, the rigmarole of laying out the town and picking lots had to be
redone. Interestingly, this time Elizabeth was part of the formal raigois
about the land she owned.

Sadly much of Oxford’s early history is murky and we know little else about
Elizabeth Roe-Combs-Lowe. Some tales have told of Nicholas and Elizabeth
Lowe residing at Anderton. We liked that tale as a romantic ending to our
Anderton series. But, though Preston acknowledges “a kernel of fact” to the
tale, he finally dismisses it as “retelling of charming traditiomW&'re left

with what we do know. Elizabeth Roe-Combs-Lowe owned the land that is
Oxford. It's not stretching to say she’s the First Lady of Oxford.

Combsberry Inn on Island Creek, now a B&B in Oxford
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Heads-up, Oxford fig lovers! Expect a great harvest this year -- thartie to t
Oxford Garden Club, Phyllis Rambo, and Gordon Graves who cleared
honeysuckle vines, unwanted trees supplanted by nature and years of garden
debris. Thank you everyone!



